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Learning in Har'mo_ny Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

.Trustees' report
For the year ended 31 August 2022

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and -auditors’ report of the
. charitable company for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes
of both a Trustees’ report and a Dlrectors report under company law.

Principal activities

The prlncupie activity of the Learning in Harmény Multi Academy Trust is to advance for the public benefit
education in the United Kingdom; in particular by establishing, maintaining and carrying on, managing and
developlng schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum.

For the period 1 September 2021 to 1 December 2021 the Trust operated 9. academies based in the London
Borough of Newham, the City of Southend-on-Sea and the London Borough of Isllngton on 1 December 2021
the 10th Academy joined the Trust in the City of Southend-on-sea. i

In the census taken on 7th .October 2022 the schools had the following number of pupils on roll:
London Borough of Newham: .

John F Kennedy Special School, for pupils aged 4 to 19. A pupil capacity of 141 and had a roll of 141. -
Sheringham Primary School, for pupils aged 4 to 11. A pupil capacity of 690 and had a roll of 588.
Upton Cross Primary School, for pupils aged 3 to 11. A pupil capacity of 1200, and had a roll of 728.
Hartley Primary School, for pupils aged 3 to 11. A pupil capacity of 960 and had a roll of 740.

Drew Primary school, for pupils aged 4to 11. A pupil capacny of 480 and a roll of 391.

Borough of Southend on Séa:

. Blenheim Primary School, for pupils aged 3 to 11. A pupil capacity of 676 and a roll of 652.
Edwards Hall Primary School, for pupils aged 4 to 11. A pupil capacity of 420 and a roll of 394
Greenways Primary School for pupils aged 4 to 11.°A capacity of 960 and a roll of 949.

Temple Sutton School, for pupnls ages 3 to 11 A pupil capacity of 838 and a roll of 762

London Borough of Isllngton
e The New North Academy, for pupils aged 3 to 11. A pupil capacity of 315 and a roll of 229

The Admissions policy for each school can be found on the Trust's website.
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust.
(A company limited by guarantee)

" Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management -
a.-Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity (registration no. 09148738) The
charitable company’s memorandum and- articles of association are the primary govermng documents of the
Academy Trust.

The Directors act as the Trustees for the charitable activities of Learning in Harmony Muilti Academy Trust a»nd‘
are also Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is known
as Learnmg in Harmony. Trust. .

The Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust was mcorporated on 28 JuIy 2014 and obtained Academy status -
for J F Kennedy School and SheringhamPrimary School from 1 September 2014, Upton Cross Primary School
from 1 September 2015, Hartley Primary School from the 1 April 2016, Drew Primary School on 1 January 2017,
Blenheim on 1 September 2016 and Greenways Primary School on-1 October 2016. Temple Sutton Primary
School joined the Trust on 1 September 2018, New North Academy joined on 1.September 2019, more recently
Edwards- Hall Primary School joined on 1 December 2021. .

Details of the Trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are mcluded in
the Reference and Admlnlstratwe Detalls on page 1

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member. .

c. Trustees' indemnities

Each Director is covered by the RPA insurance scheme rules in relation to governors liability expense.
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Leaming in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) '

Trustees’ report'(continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The members of the Learning in Harmony Muiti Academy Trust Board shall comprise the signateries to the
’Memorandum until such time as they resign or otherwise cease to be members, and any person appointed
under Article 15A, the minimum number shall be not less than 3.

As at 31 August 2021 there were 5 members appointed under article 15A.

The Articles of Association of the Trust were last renewed on 02 November 2022 Accordingly the number of
Directors shall be not less than 3, but shall not be subject to a maximum. The Learning In Harmony Multl
Academy Trust shall have the following Directors:

e upto 9 Directors appointed by the members,

¢ the Chief Executive Officer may be, and is currently, appomted as a Trustee by the members.

The parental representation at the Trust is through 2 parent governors at each of the Local Governing Bodies.
The Trust may also have any Co-opted Directors, a person who is appointed to be a Director by being co-opted
by Directors who have not themselves been so appointed. The Directors may not co-opt an employee of the
Multi Academy Trust as a Co-opted Director if the number of Directors who are employed by the Multi Academy
Trust would thereby exceed one third of the total number of Directors (including the Chief Executive Officer and
Principals).

Each of the persons entitled to appoint members above shall have the right, from time to time by written notice
delivered to the Office, to remove any Member appointed by them and to appoint a replacement member to fill a
vacancy whether resuiting from such removal or otherwise.  ~

The term of office for any Diréctor shall be 4 years, save that thls time limit shaII not apply to the Chief Executlve
Subject to remalnlng ellglble to be a particular type of Director, Dlrectors may be. reappointed or re-elected.

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees :

Durmg the perlod under review the Directors held 6 meetings, and one Director was appointed by the Members
during the year, and one subsequently up to the date of this report.

The training and induction provided for new Directors will depend on their existing experienée. All new Directors
will be given a tour of the Trust's Academies and the chance to meet with staff and students. All relevant
- Directors are provided with copies of, and digital access to, policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets,
plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Directors. As there are normally only two
or three new Directors a period, induction tends to be done lnformally and is tailored specrf cally to the individual.
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

f. Organisational structure

The Board of Trustees has delegated responsibility for delivering the vision, mission and strategic objectives to
_ the Chief Executive (CEO), who is also the Accounting Officer for the multi-academy trust. The Board will hold
the CEO to account for the performance of the Trust, including the performance of the academies within the
Trust. The Board of Trustees also decides the level of delegation to the Local Governing Bodies of the schools
and to the Risk and Audit, Finance and HR and Remuneration Committees. The levels of delegation are set out
in the Board's Scheme of Delegation. The scheme of delegation was reviewed and revisions were adopted in
July 2021.

The Local Governing Bodies are accountable to the Trustees. They are responsible for ensuring that the schools
are working within the vision, mission and policies of the Trust to achieve the strategic priorities and to assure
the educational and financial performance of the schools. The terms of reference for the Local Governing Bodies -
will also be kept under regular review.

The Risk & ‘Audit and Finance Committees ensure that all the Trust’s property and assets are under the control
of the Trustees, and that measures are in place to prevent losses or misuse, including maintenance of fixed
asset registers. During the 2021-2022 financial year the Risk and Audit Commiltee and Finance Committee
ensured that the bank accounts, financial systems and financial records were operated by more than one person
and that full and accurate accounting -records. support the proposed Trust's annual accounts. The committee
reports to the Trustees, but can refer srgnlf icant issues directly to Members where Trustees fail to act
appropriately.

The HR and Remuneration Committee ensures that the Trust's HR policies are in line with the ethos and values
of the organisation. The Committee ensures that there is transparency and oversight of pay decisions, in
particular executive pay levels. The terms of reference for this committee are kept under regular review.

To ensure that Trustees have the opportunity to consult, inform and involve Local Governmg Bodies at all levels

of the organisation, governor briefing sessions are regularly held, along with a Trust wide annua! governance

day. Representatives from all Local Governing Bodies are invited to these events, and the view of governors is

. sometimes formally sought when the Trustees are considering changes to the way that the Trust as a whole
operates.

The Trust Leadershrp Group (Executlve Leaders) meets weekly and reports to the Trustee Board on the
operational performance and strategic management of the Trust.

Trust Central Team
‘

The ‘academies within Learning in Harmony are supported by a central busrness team and central Executive
Leaders. The following roles were in place at the end of the financial year:

e Tier1and2: A central team comprising a full time CEO and a Chief Operatlng Oﬁ"cer four Executlve Head-

. Teachers

s Tier 3: HR Director, Finance Dlrector, Head of IT, Premises and Compliance Manager.

e Tier 4: Three HR Officers and a HR assistant, an ICT Operations Manager, two senior finance officers, a
finance administrator, a Media and Communrcatrons Officer, a Trust Premises and Health & Safety Manager
and a Trust administration officer.

e Trust Wide Leaders; the purpose of these roles is to provide succession planning for leadership positions
and capacity for school improvement in key areas of teaching and learning across the Trust. | )
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
- For the year ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued).

Céntral resources‘ support the continued commonality of operational systems and activities across the Trust such
as: . : ’

Insurances and premises security

Health and Safety Management System and Audit .

Premises:Core Compllance Policy, procedures and ICT systems ’ ) iy
Facilities Management services - ; - ‘
_Financial software licences and banking
‘Three year budgeting software and licences

Meeting ESFA reporting requirements

Asset management procedures and ICT systems

HR management system and HR policies

Wellbeing, occupational health and lega! advice

Payroll processing

Recruitment processes and ICT systems and marketing and retention activity
MIS systems {pupil data and records and parent communlcatlon systems)
ICT systems, infrastructure and security

Safeguarding processes, training and record keeping ) '
Educational Visit risk assessments and ICT systems

Pupil level assessment and testing systems

Governance responsibilities at school level.

Central Funding was also targeted at strategic activity:

¢ Ensuring that support and services to mltlgate the |mpact of coronavirus on teachlng Iearnmg and wellbelng
were in place .

¢ School and orgamsatlonal |mprovement

e Ambition curriculum development programme -
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust _—
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The Trust Leadership Group comprises the Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Headteachers and the Chief
Operating Officer. The arrangements for setting their pay and remuneration are:

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
The salary and job description of the Chief Executive Officer is determined annually by the HR & Remuneration
Committee. The Chief Executive’s salary is based upon three elements:

« The total pupil numbers within the trust (taking into account any special arrangements for pupils with Special
Needs) .

. » An element recognising the role as an Executive Head Teacher within the trust.

e An element recognising the additional responS|b|I|t|es identified in the CEO job description ‘

The CEO’s salary is also extemally benchmarked at least every three ‘years and in 2020 this process lead to a

defined CEO leadership payscale being formalised as part of the Trust Leadership Group payscale.

The Trust has résponded to all communication with the Debartment for Educatlon with regards to the rationale
" .and. evidence to support decisions relating to Executlve Pay levels and Trustees take advice from the Trusts
solucntors

Executive Head Teachers )

The Trustees will nominate a number of Head Teachers from within member schools who are able to
demonstrate a history of having an outstanding impact upon learning. These Executive Head Teachers will
coordinate the work of the Trust Leadership Group, be responsible for elements of the Trust's strategic plan and
are likely to lead work in other schools — particularly sponsored academies. In 2020 the Trust Leadership Group
payscale was formallsed

Chief Operating Officer
The sjob description-and salary of the Chief Operating Officer is evaluated and benchmarked regularly by the
Trust's external HR advisors and in 2020 the COO leadership payscale was forn'}allsed \

In 2021 Learning in Harmony partiéipated in a national Multi Académy Trust salary benchmarking exercise and
the results were reported to the HR and Remuneration Committee for consideration.

B
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Learning in Harmony Muiti Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

N\
A

Trustees' report (continued) -
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management (contlnued)
h. Trade union facility time
Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year . 2
Full-time ‘equivalent employee number. . - o . ’ 2

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time . . Number of

o . ' employees -
0% D o ‘ -
1%-50% 2
51%-99% ) ’ . -
100%. . ' -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time ' ’ £000
Total cost of facility ime . L , " 36
Total pay bill v ) 31,278,079
Percentage of total pay b||| spent on facility time S S - %

Paid trade union activities

Time sbent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total 'paid fa'cility time 15 % .
hours

i. Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Trust engages with its employees continuously and in a number of ways to suit their different working
‘patterns. This includes regular Trust leadership, Headteacher and line manager briefings, staff training days,
and regular visits by the Trust Leadership Group link to each school. During 2020/21 our staff were consulted
and encouraged to engage in the coronavirus risk assessments enabling their views on safe working practices to
be incorporated into the risk assessments and training. In 2021/22 our staff were encouraged to engage in a
nationally benchmarked cultural audit; this work will continue into the 2022/23 financial year. We have specific
staff intranet sites for information and news, staff updates and access to policies and a termly newsletter is "
produced and distributed to all staff. The Trust recognises unions and regularly meets with a joint union
committee on staffing issues.

The Trust seeks to ensure that every employee, without exception, is treated equally and fairly and that all
employees are aware of their obligations under the Equality Act 2010. Our policies and procedures fully support
those with disabilities. We encourage and support a wide diversity of applicants.at the recruitment stage and all
successful candidates undergo a health screening process to objectively advise line managers on workplace
adjustments. For those colleagues with existing disabilities or those who become disabled during their time with
the Trust, we work with them to make reasonable adjustments to working practices and/or environment in order
to keep the employee safe, and effective. We endeavour to ensure that the recruitment, training, career
development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other
employees.
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Learning in Harmony Multi-Academy Trust
(A company limited by guara.ntee)

Trustees' report (continued) ) )
For the year ended 31 August 2022 : ' i ) -

Structure, governance and management (continued)

j- Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Academy

The Trust recognises that as a public service education provider it needs to engage with its external
stakeholders, which include suppliers, service providers and most importantly its parents and carers, children
and wider communities, in strict accordance with the Seven Principles of Public Life. During 2021/22 we sought
out opportunities as a Trust and within our individual academies to engage with parents and carers on their
views. .

Objectives and activities

In the Learning in Harmony Trust we believe that doing things in harmony means a commitment to working
collaboratively and effectively using everyone's strengths to meet a common aim. We do not follow a school-in-a -
box model,-and instead work collaboratively at all levels within and across each school to maximise potential
through continuous challenge and support. And while there is a presumption for partnershlp W|th|n our Trust
there is also a commitment.to schools retaining their own identity.

s

a.‘;Objects and aims
The Learning in Harmony Trust's objects are as follows:

¢ to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, through establishing and maintaining -
schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum, this includes alternative provnsuon schools and special
education schools;

e to provide facilities for recreation and leisure for those within our communities W|th the object of improving
the condition of life for those within our communities;

"« to promote physical, intellectual and social development of children under five, especially those who are

socially and ‘economically disadvantaged.

Learning in Harmony Trust has four key values:
We Enable Everyone to Succeed

« Strong relatuonshlps bU|It on a foundation of trust and honesty, coupled with hlgh aspnratlons for all our .
" learners; enable us to strive for excellence.

« Support and challenge is at the heart of what we do and we have a relentless focus on the best possuble
outcomes for all our learners. :

We Act with Integrity -

+ We believe in doing things the right way.

s We are not a top down organisation and effective collaboration is at the heart of what we do. Our schools are
not identical and each has its own unique strengths. This -approach enables us to continue our learning
journey in a harmonious and rewarding way.

We are a Nurturing Community

¢ We know that it is vital to nurture and grow the.whole.child, regardless of their background to provide ali with
an opportunity to succeed.

« We strongly believe that learners flourish when they are well looked after, this starts with our staff, happy and
fulfilled staff have the greatest impact upon pupil learning.
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Learning in Harmony Multi. Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Objectives and activities (continued)
- We Encourage lnnovation

¢ Our approach to professional development is bespoke and enabling, and there are many opportunities to
learn from others both within and outside of the Trust. :
. Because we-act with integrity, our |nnovat|ve approach is always underpmned by the best research

We encourage our staff to continue to learn and to take risks in their practice to support our quest for excellence.
b. Public benefit

The Directors confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission's general
guidance on Public Benefit when reviewing the Multi-Academy Trust's aim and objectives and in planning future
" activities. In particular, the Directors consider how planned activities will contribute to the aims and objectives
they have set. Our charitable objective is Education for Public Benefit.

The Trust works with the Local Authorities in which its schools are based to ensure that the catchment areas are
clearly defined as part of the joint local admission arrangements. The admissions policy for each school defires
its catchment area and admissions criteria, these are published on the schools’ websites and as part of the Local
Authority admissions schemes. Pupils are admitted if they meet the admissions criteria as published.

A small number of volunteer-. adults support in some of the Trust's schools where it is deemed appropriate for the
pupils and the context of the school. Volunteers are generally engaged in reading activities with our puplls this
will have been beneficial to pupils needing support and practice reading aloud to gain confidence

' Strategic report:
Achlevements and performance

Leadership: Aim-- By 2025 we aim to have exceptional leaders, at all levels across the trust who are
ready or preparing for their next leadership challenge. '
Progress:
We have mapped out our leadership development opportunities across the Trust and identified Ieadershlp
pathways for a range of roles within the Trust. We have a strong understanding of the current status of
Ieadershlp development within our schools and know what works well and what has the most impact

Curriculum and Assessment Aim - We have a currlculum in every school that enables puplls to thrlve in
life, learning and work
- Progress: ’
We have worked to ensure that all schools are clear about their curriculum intent and planned implementation;
curriculum plans are ambitious for all learners and allow for progression of knowledge, skills and attitudes,
which supports the trust’s vision of making a positive difference to society. Work is well underway at each of
- our schools to implement the curriculum intent. .

Teaching and Learning: A|m There is exceptlonal engagement and Iearmng for aII pupils

Progress:
We have developed a shared understanding of what effective teaching and learning is and this is beginning to .
be applied in schools across the trust.

SEND: Aim - All SEN pupils in our schools are thriving and are prepared for life and in readiness for the
next stage of their j journey . .
Progress: ‘ '
We have audited our schools and have an excellent understanding of the approach taken in each setting, we
have developed enhanced relationships with the three local authorities within which we operate, we have
developed and enhanced relationships with other trusts and SEN agencies. These actions will'enable us to
progress to ensure that support for SEN developments is coordinated and overseen by the centre of the Trust.
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Léarning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Trust Growth and centralisation of services:

Progress:
Edwards Hall Primary School jomed the Trust in December 2021 becoming the 10th member of the Trust
family of schools; further conversahons have taken place W|th other schools wishing to f nd-out about joining
the Trust.

- Ofsted inspection outcomes:

During the period of preparation of the Strateglc Report of the Trustees for 2021 / 2022 each of the Trust schools
was rated as good or outstanding.

* a. Key perfor'rﬁance indicators

The Trustees are' of the opinion that given the nature of the management of the business the key metrics which
require specific monitoring are:’ :
Outcomes based:
e Ofsted inspection outcomes
* Key stage results - the latest results published on our websntes are for 18/19
Context based:
e Student numbers- which provides the baS|s for funding from the EFSA
Pay % of Total income
Number of teachers
Teachers payroll cost and -
- Average teacher cost
No of students per teacher
Debtors % over 60 days

. A} o
The key stage results published on our websites are for 18/19 as due to the impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic,
the Department for Education has advised that schools continue to publish.their 2018/19 data until further notice.

b. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of Trustees agreed on 28 September 2022 that it has a reasonable
expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. Further details regardmg the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Policies.

c: Promoting the success of the company

A key focus of the Trustee Board during ‘the 2021/2022 financial year was holding the Executive Team to

account for ensuring that pupils were safe and happy and continuing to receive a well sequenced learning offer.
" During the year, Trustees invited Head Teachers and Trust Leadership Group members. to attend Trustee Board

meetings in order to understand and reassure themselves of the work of the Trust. :

Trustees actively attended govermng body meetings and the annual Trust Wide Governance day which was held
in March 2022.

Trustees received regular progress reports during the ‘year, |n partlcular relating to the proposed opemng of the
Connaught SpeC|aI Free School in Newham ,
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Learning in Harmony Muiti Academy Trust
{A company limited by guarantee).

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (contin'ued) N

One new Trustee was appointed during the financial year and one subsequently up to the date of this report.
These appointments enhanced and complimented the existing education sector and financial skills within the
Board. A further skills review was ‘conducted in the summer term which enabled the board to actlvely con5|der
future appomtments and succession planning to key Trustee Board roles.

Financial Review

Most of the Multi Academy's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the
form of recurrent grants, Some of which are restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA
during the period endeéd 31 August 2022 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
Statement of. Financial Activities. The Multi Academy Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA.
In accordance with the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice, 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities'
(SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restncted income in the fixed
asset fund. .

The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation chérges over the ekpected uséful life
of the assets concerned. During the period ended 31 August 2022, total expenditure of £48,897k (2021:
* £47,190k) was met by recurrent grant funding from the ESFA together with other incoming resources.

The excess of expenditure over income for the period (excluding restricted fixed asset funds, pension transferred
on conversion/transfer and transfers to restricted fixed asset funds) was £23%k (2021: £296k). At 31 August -
2022 the net book value of fixed assets was £94,787K (2021: £90,567k), Movements in tangible fixed assets are

shown in note 14 to the financial statements: The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the
associated support services to the pupils of the Multi Academy Trust. The Newham Council Pension Fund,
Essex Council and Islington Council, which the Trust participates, showed a deficit of £5,446k (2021 £25,697k)

at 31 August 2022.

Reserves policy

"The Directors review the reserve levels of the Multi Academy Trust annually. This review encompasses the
nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of
reserves. The Directors have determined that the appropnate level of free reserves should be equivalent to one
month’s payroll expenditure, approximately £1,500k, the reason for this is to provide sufficient reserves to cover -
delays between spending and receipt of grants and unéxpected emergencies. The Directors have agréeed to the
use of reserves in the 2022/23 financial year in order to achieve centralisation efficiencies, in addition a
programme of activity to create savings in future years has been agreed. The Multi Academy Trust's current
level of free reserves of £2,684k (2021 :£2,923k) (total funds. less the amount held in fixed assets and restricted .
funds). : . . >

N\

~ Investment policy

Under the Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Trust has the power to invest funds not immediately
required for its own purposes, in any way the Directors see fit. The organisation has a positive cash balance to
cover eventualities and unforeseen expenses. The banking facilities are reviewed on a regular basis. -
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
". (A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued) - .
For the year ended 31 August 2022 ) . - ,

_Principal risks and uncertainties

. One of the main financial risks that the Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust has always had exposure to,
taking account of the mitigations in place, relate to the risk of an income shortfall due to the likelihood of further’
government spending reductions affectlng our general grant and further unfunded pay awards for teachers and
support staff. :

. This risk is mitigated by careful management of Trust funds and a comprehensnve budgetmg process, which
includes scenario planning for different funding modes. .

Other risks identified by Dlrectors include: .

e The need to balance both the desire to grow and the capacny to grow,

e A risk arises in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme, due to the fact that there is a deficit of
£5,446k (2021: £25,697k)

¢ Rising inflation, utilities costs and teaching and support staff pay awards

The Trust maintains a comprehensive Risk Register, listing all identified risks aﬁd specifying current mitigaiion
and additional mitigation to be put in place. This is regularly reviewed and -updated by the Trust Leadership
-Group, and has been regularly approved by Dlrectors

The Directors have assessed the major risks to which the Multi Academy Trust is exposed, in particular those
relating specifically to teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Trust, and its finances.
- The Directors have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the Trust's schools face, especially in
the- operational areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips) and in relation to
_the control of finance. The Directors continue to ensure that systems, including operational procedures of
internal financial controls are reviéwed and refined in order to minimise risk. Where significant financial risk still
remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The. Multi Academy Trust has an effective
system of internal financial controls.

Fund}aising

" The Trust plans to expand by adding new Academies which subscribe to the Trust's ethos, aims and objectlves
and where the Board considers that mutual benefits will arise. . :

' During the summer of 2022 the Trust engaged the services of an external fundraising consultant to support wuth
bid writing and grant funding applications. ’
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) -

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2022
St_reamiined energy and cerpon reporting

The Academy's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

’

: 2022 2021
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) . I 8,237,604 12,352,823
Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent): .
Gas consumption : , 1,014 1,430
Owned transport ' : -1 ' 1
Total scope 1 1,015 1,431
. : . e

Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Purchased electricity - 635 - 1,067
Scope 3 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equiva!ent):

~ Business'travel in employee-owned or rental vehicles . o - » 1
Total gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equivalent): o 1,650 - 2,499
Intensity ratio: )
Tonnes of CO2 equwalent per pup|l ‘ . ‘ 0.03 0.04

o

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

« We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have aIso used the
GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2022 .UK Government's Conversion’
Factors for Company Reporting. . :

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupll the
recommended ratio for the sector. ) r

" Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

. We have installed smart meters across all sites and |ncreased video conferencing technology for staff meetlngs
to reduce the need for travel between sites.
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Learning in Hérmony Multi Academy Trust .
(A company limited by guarantee) ‘

Trustees’ report (continued) i
For the year ended 31 August 2022 '

Plans for future periods

The Trust will continue striving to imprbvé the levels of performance of its students at all levels and will continue
its efforts to ensure its students get jobs or a place in higher education once they Ieave Specifically Trustees
will: .

e Work anngs&de the Trust Leadership Team to ensure that the Vision 2025 Strategw Pian is |mplemented
reflecting the ambition and values of the trust including:

¢ A revised quality improvement framework that will allow all schools to self—evaluate accurately the quality of
their provision.

e Rigorous and appropriately -paced school improvement plans whlch include' detail- of how a school s
strengths will be shared and utilised across the trust. '

e A clearset of curriculum goals is developed which articulates the trust's vision and values and prov:des a
foundation for each school’s individual curriculum intent.

« A shared framework of what constitutes excellent teaching is developed, which will be used as a foundation
for the refinement of individual school teaching and learning policies.

e Suppor, challenge and hold the Trust Leadership Team to account for their actlons in ensuring that- the
Trust's.goals are achieved

.« " Ensure all actions taken to achieve the trust's goals are within the Trust's regulatory framework including the

Academy Trust Handbook and Articles of Association.

‘Auditor

Insofar as the trustees are aware:

o There is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware
e The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information -and to establish that the auditor is aware of the information.

Auditor - : ' .

The-auditor, Kreston Reeves LLP, has indicated his willingness to continue in office. The designated Trustees
will propose a motion reappointing the auditor at'a meeting of the Trustees. ' .

The Trustees' report, iﬁcorporéting a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board. of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 7 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

P SF‘V‘I?S ” | | o éay\?wu:ib

B Spinks - . S G Wilkie
Chair of Trustees . . Accounting Ofﬁcer
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

deer’nance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Leaming in Harmony Multi

Academy Trust has an effective and. appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such.a

system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
" provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance agalnst matenal misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfEs Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance. : -

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day ‘responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as accounting

. officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They
are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any materlal weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control.

Governance

“The information on governance included here supplements that ,described in the Trustees' report and ‘in the
" Statement of trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 6 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board‘ of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee - ° Meetings attended Out of a possible

B Splnks(Chalr from 28 September 2022)
L Undenwoke (resigned 22 September 2021)

P Haslett (Chair to 27 September 2022) 2 6
G Wilkie, Accounting Officer 6 6
H Hinchliffe 5 6
R Keller (resigned 23/02/2022) 3 -6 -
R Jones OBE (resigned 25/03/2022) ~ 3 6.
M Miles {resigned 10 March 2022) 1 6
C Mulenga (appointed 19 November 2021) 4 6
P Saville 6 6
L Cartmell 5 6
5 6
0 0

Conﬂicts of interest

All Trustees, Members, senior leaders, and staff with budgetary responsibility are required to complete an annual
declarations of interest form. The register of interests is maintained throughout the year, and is a standing item
on each Board and governing body meeting. Staff are made aware that the purpose of the declarations of
interest and the register itself is to ensure that employees and those within the governance structure adhere to
the Seven Principles of Public Life, and that we are open and transparent about personal interests and that all -
decisions are made with good intent and clear information.

" Where a conflict might occur it is a procé’dural requirement that the potential conflict is disclosed and considered
by those with responsibility for making decisions in order that the Trustees can act in the Trust's best interests.

Governance reviews

During the 2021/22 financial year Trustees undertook a skills audit to ensure that gaps in skills could be
identified and used to support future trustee recruitment. In addition the Trustees undertook the annual review of
the scheme of delegation, and reviewed the terms of reference for each of the sub-committees of the Trustee
Board. An outcome of the review of the scheme of delegation and the functioning of the board was that a Quality
of Education sub committee should be convened and implemented during the 2022/23 financial year. The
'scheme of delegation, and governance charter, were updated to reflect these changes.
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Learning in Harrnony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)
Governance (continued)

. The Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. Its purpose is to ensure that the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook in relation to robust oversight of the financial aspects of the Trust
are fulfilled through receiving regular financial reports, ensuring that bank accounts, financial systems are
effectively operating and reviewing budget recommendations. The committee will report to the Trustees, but can
refer significant issues directly to Members where Trustées fail to act appropriately..-

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Dlrectors C : : Meetmgs attended Out of a possible
L Cartmell (Chair) ' 3 3
R Keller 0 3
P Haslett ’ 1 3
R White (co-opted accountant) 2 "3
A Chatiza (co-opted accountant) 1 3

The Audit and Risk Committee is also a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. Its purpose is to ensure
that the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook in relation to risk management and internal scrutiny are
fuffilled through establishing a programme of internal scrutiny to provide independent assurance to the board that
its financial and non-financial controls and risk management procedures are operating effectively.

“Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:’

Directors ) Meetings attended Out of a possible

C Mulenga (Chair) - 3 : 3 _ . -
P Saville . - : 3 - 3 .

R Dance (co- opted) ) - , 1 ) 3

~ The HR and Remuneration Committee is also a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. Its purpose is to
form the CEO’s annual appraisal panel as well as having the delegated authority to approve the proposed pay
scales for all staff within the Trust. The Committee monitors the implementation of HR pohcnes and strategies
across the Trust and provides support and challenge on HR decisions.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee ] Meetings attended Out of a possible

H Hinchcliffe o ‘ 3 3 '

P Saville _ 3 3

J Herron (co-opted) 1 _ 3

T Inverary (co-opted) 0 0 !

Review of value for money

As accounting-officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

e The accounting officer considers how the Academy’s use. of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for-money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the

" - Académy has delivered improved value for money during the year by.

¢ Reéviewing the functions of the Trust and Academies, challenging how and why services are provnded always
looking for efficiencies and improvements. Establishing a strategic plan and roadmap to achieve those
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money (continued)

efficiencies/improvements. -
e Consulting with stakeholders prior to any major decisions being made, for example the use ‘of trust wide
service level agreements with external providers. ’
e Working alongside the Chief Operating Officer to review all contracts and ensure best value for money,
particularly during the Tendering process or future potential builds.
Ensuring re-tendering processes are in line with the Academy Trust Handbook-
Seek opportunities for resource management to capitalise on available funding
Continuous scrutiny by.internal and external auditors and other experts the Trust thinks would add value
The Trust has also employed the services of an external party to look at Fundraising opportunities

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable leve! rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in- place in Learning in Harmony Trust for
the period 1st September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.

5

Capaéity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.. The board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing.the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 01 September 2021 to 31 August 2022
-and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements This process is regularly reviewed
by the board of Trustees. .

The risk and control framework
The Academy’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of reéular‘ management information

and administrative procedures mcludlng the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, it includes: .

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an.annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which indicate fmancual
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance

° clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

identification and management of risks

‘The Board of Trustees has decided to employ MHA Macintyre Hudson as internal auditor. The Trustees chose to
engage an external scrutineer in order to ensure that there was independence, rigour and accountability within
the process. The risk register is used as the basis for designing the internal audit programme.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust’s financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

o Pupil recruitment and retention ,
e JFK Aged Debtors . : .
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Learning in Harmony .MlAllti Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) '

Governance Statement (continued)

The risk and control framework (centinued)

¢ Treasury Management

-On-a termly basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the Risk and Audit committee on
the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial responsibilities
and annually prepares a short annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key
findings, recommendations and ‘conclusions to help the committee consider actlons and assess year on year
progress.

The internal scrutiny programme was completed'on schedule under each contract, key findings were as follows:

e JFK Aged Debtors - Auditor opinion that the Board can take Limited Assurance over the effectiveness of the
controls in place to manage the risks associated with this area. Key areas for improvement are:

- Policies and Procedures - Debtor Policy. The Financial Procedures document needs to be
updated to provrde a detailed debtor policy.

- Debtor Management - Providing documentation and a clear audit trail on debtor chasrng

- Segregation of Duties - Provrde more detail within the organisational chart and jOb
descriptions who is responsrble for what in the debtor collectlon/management process

e Treasury Management Auditor opinion that the Board can take Adeguate Assurance over the effectiveness
of the controls in place to manage the risks assocrated with this area. Key areas for improvement are:
’ - Treasury Management Policy - Include a Treasury Management Policy within the
_ Financial Procedures or as a separate policy
- Level of Cash Reserves - Provide further detail as to the reason why the Trust is holdmg
the reserves it has over and above the Reserves Policy.

e * Pupil Recruitment - Auditor opinion that the board can take Ilmlted assurances from the internal controls.
Key areas for improvement are:
- Development of a pupil recruitment strategy to |dent|fy the key actions and scheduled events to
‘ensure that the Trust maximises pupil numbers on roll into reception year groups

In addition, throughout the year the intemal scrutiny programme of work that was reported to the committee

included the annua! General Data Protection Audit - adequate reassurance and the Health and Safety audit
reports undertaken by the external competent person service.
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

" Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system -
of intemal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

e the work of the internal auditor; :
. the financial management and governance self assessment process or the school resource management
" . self-assessmenttool : .
. the school resource management self-assessment tool;
. the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsmlllty for the development and
_ maintenance of the internal control framework.
e the work of the external auditor;

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Risk and Audit committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous lmprovement
of the system is in place.

' Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 7 December 2022 and signed on their behalf
by: )

b Spnks D ém? (MU:(L
B Spinks - G Witkie
Chair of Trustees N . . - Accounting Officer
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and COmpIiancé

vt

As accountlng officer of Learnlng in Harmony Multi Academy Trust |I"have conS|dered my responsibility to notify
the Academy Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms_and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the
funding agreement in place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration I-have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the Academy Board. of Trustees are able to identify ahy material irregﬁlar or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of fundlng under the
Academy's fundlng agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, |mpropr|ety or fundlng non-compliance have been discovered

to date. If any instances are |dent|f ed after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

| | éow\? (MU«JLI

"~ G Wilkie

Accounting Officer
Date: 7 December 2022
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
For the year ended 31 August 2022

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting

Standards (United ngdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations. ’

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements-unless they are satisfied that they .give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expendlture for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consnstently,
observe the methods and principles of the Charmes SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon
2021 to 2022;
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; ‘
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any material. departures‘
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
. prepare the financial statements on the gaing concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the
‘ charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible. for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. -

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been apphed for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparatlon and
dissemination of financial statements may differ'from legislation in other junsdlctlons
'Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 7 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:
&""" Spinks - Gay (Nilkie
B Spinks G Wilkie -
Chair of Trustees B, ~ Accounting officer
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Learmng in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust : .

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust (the ‘academy’) for the
year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the
Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a' summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy’s. affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming
' resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
o have been properly prepared in accordance with Umted Klngdom Generally Accepted Accountmg
Practice; and
e« ' have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006, the Charities SORP-
. 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Fundlng
Agency :

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
. of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
- ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including

the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in -

accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we’ have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide.a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

" In auditing the financial statements we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the gomg concern basns of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have pet'formed, we have not identified any materialluncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the ﬁnancial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsnbllltles and the responsnbllltles of the Trustees w1th respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report. .
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy-Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditor’s Report on the financial statements to the 'Membérs of Learning in Harmony Muiti
Academy Trust (continued) :

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our .
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
-otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there |s a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 4 : ' -,

In our opinio'ri, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the Trus‘tees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which

the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. .
. the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exceptién
In the light of our knowledge and understahding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identiﬁed material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.

We have nothlng to report in respect of the following matters in relation to whlch the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: .

‘. adequate accountlng records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
~ received from branches not visited by us; or
.. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

. Responsibilities of trustees - .

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether-
. due.to fraud or error.. :

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern-and using the going
“concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to Ilqmdate the Academy or to cease operations,
.or have no reallstlc alternative but to do so. .
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/

Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Learning in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust (continued) )

s

‘

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements )

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue. an Auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
"detailed below:

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and the sector, and through discussion with the Trustees and
other management (as required by auditing standards), we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to child protection and safeguarding, health and safety and employment law.
We considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We -
also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Statement of Recommended Practice, Academies Accounts
Direction, Academies Financial Handbook, taxation, and pension legislation. We communicated identified laws
and regulations throughout our team .and remained atert to any indications of non-compliance throughout the
audit. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to
posting inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, management bias in accounting
estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as the valuation of land and buildings and
revenue and non-compliance with financial management and governance requirements which are consistent
with the obligations of public funded bodies. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

o Discussions with management and assessment of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations (including health and safety) and fraud, and review of the reports made by
management and internal audit; and

 Assessment of identified fraud risk factors; and

¢ Identifying and assessing the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent and
detect fraud; and -

e Consideration of income streams completeness of income and comphance wuth the obllgatlons of funders
including the ESFA .

o Testing of internal controls procedures relating.to expenditure potentlally more susceptible to fraud and other
irregularities including the- misuse of public funding in areas such as cash, payroll and credit card
expenditure; and '
Review of cash and credit card expenditure to confirm no evidence of personal benefit; and
Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates; and
Checking and reperforming the reconciliation of key control accounts; and

"Performing analytical procedures with automated data analytics to identify any unusual or unexpected
relationships, including related party transactions, that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to
fraud; and

» Confirmation of related parties with management, and review of transactions throughout the period to identify
any previously undisclosed transactions with refated parties outside the normal course of business; and

¢ Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and
reviewing correspondence with relevant tax and regulatory authorities; and

¢ Review of internal controls and physical inspection of tangible assets susceptible to fraud or lrregulanty, and
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lndependent auditor's Report on the fi nancral statements to the Members of Learning in Harmony Multl
Academy Trust (continued)

Review of significant and unusual transactions and evaluation of the underlying financial rationale supporting

the transactions; and

Identifying and testing journal entries, in partrcu|ar any manual entries made ‘at the year end for f nanciat

statement preparatxon

Because of the inherent limitations of an aud|t there is a risk that we will not detect all’ irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more. that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concea|ment forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise. professronal judgment and maintain professmnal.
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness
of the Academy'’s internal control.
Evaluate the  appropriateness of accounting- polucres used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustees.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accountmg and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists rélated to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Academy’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in my Auditor's report to. the related
~ disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my Auditor's report. However,
" future events or conditions may cause the Academy to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements représent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation. ‘ .

We communicate with those charged with govemance. regarding, among other matters, the plahned scope and
timing of the audit and signifi icant audit fi ndlngs rncludmg any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
rdentlfy during our audit.
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditor's Report on the ﬁnancnal statements to the Members of Learmng in Harmony Multi -
Academy Trust (continued) - .
!

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

‘.

kragron eave, Lf

Peter Manser FCA DChA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Kreston Reeves LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

Chatham Maritime

16 December 2022
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited.by guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Learning in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust and the Education and Skills-Funding Agency .

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 24 October 2022 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited -assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Leaming in Harmony Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2021 to 31
August 2022 have been applied to the purposes identifi ed by Parliament and the financial transactions conform
to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Leaming in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Learning in
Harmony Multl Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Learnlng in Harmony Multi Academy Trust's accountmg officer
and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements. of Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust's
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 27 August 2014 and-the Academy Trust}
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the fi nancnal transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them. .

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come
to our-attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions.do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approaeh

We conducted our engégement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter. .

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provnde us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusmn on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in séope than a reasonable -assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our. engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and-propriety of the
Academy’s income and expenditure.

Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
The work undertaken to draw to our conclusions inclu'des.:

- Reviewed the evidence used to support the Accounting Officer's sign off of the regularity statement
- Reviewed expenditure against specific terms of grant funding within the Funding Agreement .
- Reviewed grants have been applied for the purposes intended.
- Confirmed that internal control procedures exist relating to expenditure incurred of cash and credit cards .
- Confirmed items claimed on cash and credit cards are not for personal benefit
- Reviewed expenditure and considered whether any supplies are from related parties
- Reviewed Board of Trustee minutes for declaration of interests
- Considered whether other income activities are permitted within the Academy Trust's charitable objects
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Learning in Harmony Multi.
A‘cademy Trust and theWEducation & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

- Considered if borrowing agreements, including leases, have been made in accordance with the Academy
Trust Handbook 2021 )

- Considered if the Trust's governance arrangements and composition comply with the Academy '
Trust Handbook 2021 :

- Confirmed procurement and tendering procedures exist relating to expenditure and have been complied with

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them. \

kresten Kezwe, V4
Reporting Accountant

Kreston Reeves LLP
Chartered Accountants

Date: 16 December 2022
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of financial actlvmes (mcorporatmg income and expendlture account)

- For the year ended 31 August 2022

~

Restricted

Unreéstricted . Restricted  fixed asset ‘Total ) Total
funds funds funds funds funds
] 2022 2022 2022 . - 2022 2021
Note . £o00 © £000 £000 . £000 £000
Income from: ‘
Donations and capltal
grants: - . 4
Transfer from local . : ‘ ‘
authority on conversion 736 -'(862) 5,010 1 4,884 .-
Other donations and ' : R : '
capital grants - ' - 41 966 i 1,007 1,214
Other trading activities 6 2,480 . ‘ - . - 2,480 2,593
Investments 7 A . L. ' 1 1
Charitable activities 5 . - 41,338 T .- 41,338 . ‘ 40,244
Totalincome -~~~ . . . 3217 40517 = 5976 49,710 44,052
Expenditure on: R :
Charitable activities 8,9 ‘797 . 45,870 - 2,230 48,898 . 47,190
Total expenditure ' - 797 45,870 2,230 48,897 47,190
Net . o . . o .
 income/(expenditure) : 2,420 .(5,3583) - - 3,746 .813 (3,138)
Transfers between funds 18 (2,659) . 1,259 - . 1,400 - o -
Net movement in funds ‘
before other
recognised , - S :
gains/(losses) - (239) | (4,094) 5,146 813 (3,138)
Other recognisedl . . A
" gains/(losses):
Actuarial gains/(losses) on . )
" defined benefit pension : ' . ’ , '
schemes . 25 .- . 24,345 - 24,345 (2,848)
Net movement in funds - (239) 20,251 5146 25,158 (5,'986)
 Reconciliation of funds: .
Total funds brought - . , i 4
forward = - 2,923 '(25,697) 91,134 . 68,360 74,346
" Net movement in funds A' C (239) - 20,251 . 5146 25,158 (5,986)
Total funds carried - : - : -
forward - 2,684 (5,446) 96,280 - 93,518 68,360

" The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

_ The notes on pages 34 to 63 form part of these financial statements.
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust -

(A company limited by guarantee)
Registered number: 09148738

Balance sheet .
As at 31 August 2022 -

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
* Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year .

_ Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the Acédemy ‘
'Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds

Restricted funds excludihg pension asset

Pension reserve

'i'otal restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds .-

Note

15

- 16

17

25

18

18
18

18
18

2022

£000

94,787

94,787
1,201
6,545
7,746

(3,569)

4177

-~ 98,964

98,964

(5,446)

93,518
96,280
96,280
(5,446)

. 90,834

2,684

93,518

-91,134

2021
£000
90,567
90,567
2,098
5,086
7,184
. (3,694)
3,490
94,057
94,057
* (25,697)
. 68,360 - -
91,134
(25,697)
65,437
2,923

68,360

The financial statements on pages 31 to 63 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 07
. December 2022 and are signed on their behalf, by:

Bun Spinks

B Spinks
Chair of Trustees

oy Wilkie

G Wilkie -

Accounting Officer -

The notes on pages 34 to 63 form part of these financial statements.
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'Learnin_g in Harmony Multi Academy Trust -
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of cash flbws )
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Cash flqws from ohe’ratjhg activities

Net cash prc">vic:ied by operating activities

Cash _flows from investing activities .

Change in cash aﬁd cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the Eééinning of the year

" Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 34 to 63 form part of these financial statements
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122,23

2022 2021
£000 £000
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the ﬁﬁanciai statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

1.

General information

Learnlng In Harmony Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity

. incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is Hartley Primary School, Hartley Avenue,

London, E6 1NT. The principal activity of the Acadevmy Trust is to provide an education for pupils that
satisfies the requirements of the Education Act 2002.

Accounting policies

21

2.2

23

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preperation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in ‘accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS
102.

The financial statements are rouhded to the nearest thousand.
The functional currency represented in the financial statements are in GBP.
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing

~ the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured rellably

Grants ' .
Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of

.income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant

funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred .
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related condmons are met. Where‘
entitlement occurs before i mcome is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recogmsed in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is'receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capitél grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. U,nspent'
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) '

Notes to the financial atatéments
‘For the year ended 31 August 2022 - ) ,

2. Accounting policies (continued)

23

24

2.5

Income (continued)

amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balancé sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life. of the asset on
which they are expended. '

Donations :
Donations are recognised on a recelvable basis (where there are no performance-related condmons)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is recelvable and to the extent :
the Academy has provided the goods or services. '

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Academy on conversion to an academy, the
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet at the point when -
the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Academy. An equal amount-of income is recognised
as a transfer on conversion within 'lncome from Donations and Capital Grants' to the net assets
received. * . -

Donated fixed assets {excluding transfers on conversion or into the Academy)

Where the donated -good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is’
recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included
in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic hfe in accordance
with the Academy's accounting policies.

Expenditure

'Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it.is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and-

" the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs

of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support -costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the 'use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and deprecnatlon
charges allocated on the portion of the assets use.

Charltable activities

- These are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operatlons including support costs and costs

rélating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Government grants ,

Government grants relating to tangi'byle fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to
the Statement of financial activities over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. Other
grants are credited to the Statement of financial activities as the related expenditure is incurred.
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(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

2 Accounting policies (continued)

26

a7

2.8

29

Interest receivable . .

Interest on funds held .on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be meésured .
reliably by the Academy; this is normally upon notification of the interest pald or payable by the.
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxation

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes. '

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of

depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation-on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation isAprovi'ded on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Depreéiation is provided on the fdllowing bases:

Freehold property : - Buildings 50 years, Land Nil
Furniture and equipment’ - 3 Years '
‘Computer equipment --3 Years

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value_of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognlsed as impairments. Impalrment
Iosses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

2.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand inéludes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.
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Learning in Harmony Multi Acadeniy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

" Notes to the financial statements- )
For the year ended 31 August 2022

'2. Accounting policies (gontin_ued)

2.11 Liabilities

!

Lvabllltles are recogmsed when there is an obllgatlon at the Balance shéet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settiement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
-anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has recelved as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide. '

2.12 Financial instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows: .

Financial assets - trade ‘and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a fi nancual
liability, as the cash settlement has aiready taken place and there is an-obligation to dellver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument. .

2.13 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straught
* line basis over the lease term.

2.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroil. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retun on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on.the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations.. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.
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Lea(ning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Pensions (continued)
- Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and .Iosses.

2.15.Conversion to an academy trust -
The conversiontfrom a state maintained school to an Academy involved the transfer of identifiable
assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for £NIL consideration. The substance of the
transfer is that of a glft and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below. .
The assets and Ilabllmes transferred on conversion from Edwards Hall Primary to the Academy have

~ been valued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived based on that of equivalent items.
The amounts have been recognised under the appropriate Balance sheet categories, with a
corresponding amount recognised in Income from Donations and Capital Grants in the Statement of
financial activities and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed
asset funds.
'Further details of the transaction are set out in note 24.
1216 Agency arrangements
. Where the Trust acts as agent in collecting and / or distributing from the ESFA or others, and

subsequent disbursements are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities as the Trust does
not have control over charitable application of the funds ‘The funds received and paid, and any
balances held are disclosed in note 30.

2. 17 Fund accountmg

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meetmg any of the
chantable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be apphed to specific ea'pital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

" Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrlctlons imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Depanment for Educatlon Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are ‘allocated to the appropriate fund.

N
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
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Notes to the financial statements

3.

" For the year ended 31 August 2022

. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are befieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances. . .

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy makes - estimates and assumptiohs concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and *
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material a\djustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Multi-émployer benefit pension scheme

The present value ‘of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a

.number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The

assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions .include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2021 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Tangible fixed assets ‘

The Academy Trust has recognised tangible fixed assets with a carrying value of £94,787k at the reporting
date (see note 15). These assets are stated at their cost less provision for depreciation and impairment.
The Academy Trust's accounting policy sets out the approach to calculating depreciation for immaterial
assets acquired. For material assets such as land and buildings the Academy Trust determines at
acquisition reliable ~ estimates for the wuseful life of the asset, its residual value and
decommissioning costs. These estimates are based upon such factors as the expected use of the
acquired asset and market conditions. At subsequent reporting dates the Trustees consider whether there
are any factors such as technological advancements or changes in market conditions that indicate a need
to reconsider the estimates used. :

Where there are indicators that the carrying value of tangible assets may be impaired the Academy Trust
undertakes tests to determine the recoverable amount of assets. These tests require estimates of the fair
value of assets less cost to sell and of their value in use. Wherever possible the estimate of the fair value
of assets is based upon observable market prices less incremental cost for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based upon a discounted cash flow model, based upon the Academy Trusts'
forecasts for the foreseeable future which do not include any restructuring activities that the Academy
Trust is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance.
The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as
well expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Critical areas of judgment:

Lease commitments

The Academy Trust has entered into a range of lease commitments in respect of plant and equipment.
The classification of these leases as either financial or operating leases requires the Trustees to consider

whether the terms and conditions of each lease are such that the Academy Trust has acquired the risks
and rewards associated with the ownership of the underlying assets.
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Notes to the financial stéiements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Critical accounfing’ estimates and areas of judgment (continued)

Certain employees participate in a 'multi-employer:deﬁned_ benefit pension scheme with other Academy
Trusts. In the judgement of the Trustees, the Academy Trust does not have sufficient information on the
plan assets and liabilities to be able to reliably account for its share of the defined obligation and plan

3.
Multi-employer dgﬁned benefit pension scheme
. details.
4, Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted

- assets. Therefore the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, see note 25 for further

26

Unrestriétéd Restricted fixed asset Total .Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 - £000
Transfer from local authority on '
conversion ] - 736 (862) 5,010 4,884 -

Donations . . - 41 - 41
Capital grants s . - - 966 966 1,123
Donated assets . ‘ - - - - 65
736 (821) 5,976 5,891 1,214

26 1,188 1,214

+ Total 2021 s -
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Lea'rriing in Harﬁxony Multi Aéademy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

'Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

5. Funding for the academy trust's educétioﬁal»bperations ,

Restricted . Total . Total

funds funds . funds
- 2022 - 2022. 2021
- £000 ~ £000 EOQO ’
DfE/ESFA grants - .
General annual grant (GAG) o . _ 28,841 - . 28,841 27,759
Other DfE/ESFA grants . : o : : o _
Pupil Premium : ' » 2,329 2,329 2,063
UFsM - 53 535 . 764
Other ESFA/DfE grants - 1,417. A.417 ' 396
. : ‘33,122 = 33,122 30,982
Other Government grants ‘
Local authority grants 8,216 . 8,216 8,834
8,216 8216 © 8834
~ COVID-19 additional fundmg (DfEIESFA) _
Catch-up Premium _ . ; - . - ' 428
- - : 428
41,338 . 41,338 ‘ 40,244
‘41,338 41,338 40,244
“Total 2021 o | . 40244 40,244

In the year to 31 August 2021, Teachers pay and Teachers pension-grants were presénted separately in
the financial statements. Following a change to the stiucture of DfE/ESFA funding in the current year, -
these two grants are now included as part of the General annual grant and are no longer separately:
identifiable. Therefore the prior year's Teachérs pay and Teachers pension grant-(£1,034K)

have been amalgamated with the General annual grant (£27,759k), for comparatlve purposes.

The Trust received £Nil (2021: £428K) of fundlng for catch-up premium and costs incurred |n respect of
this funding totalled £Nil (2021: £428K). - .
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6. Income from other trading éctivitieS.
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Hire of facilities 149 - 149 - '66
Catering income 197 - - 197 129
' Other'trading income 2,134 - 2,134 2,398
2,480 - 2,480 2,593
Total 2021 2,549 -44 2,593 -
7. . Investmentincome
Total Total
funds
2022 2021
" £000 £000
Interest received ) 1 1
8. Expenditure
Staff Costs Premises Other: T6t31 Total -
2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Educational operations
Direct costs ' 30,004 - 1,763 31,767 31,240
Support costs- v ’ - 8,451 3,799 4,881 . 17,131 15,950
38,455 3,799 - 6,644 48,898 47,190
Total 2021 o ’ - 36,685 4,655 5,850 47,190
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9.  Analysis of expenditure by activities

Total 2021
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31,240

- . . Support ‘Total Total
Direct costs costs funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2021
. £000 - ~ -£000 £000 £000
Educational operations 31,767 17,131 48,898 47,190

Total 2021 131,240 15,950 1 47,190

Analysis of direct costs
Total Total
funds funds
2022 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000
Staff costs 29,771 29,771 28,329
Depreciation - - 1,163
Travel costs 114. 114 -3
Educational supplies 845 . 845 743
Educational equipment 31. 3 206
* Educational consultancy - 773 773 677
Staff development 233 233 119
- 31,767 31,767 31,240
31,240
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9.

10.

Anélysis of expenditdre by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

LGPS pension costs ‘

Staff costs .
Depreciation

Repairs and maintenance .

Cleaning costs
Light, heat and rates
Insurance costs
General office costs
ICT costs )

Other staff costs
Professional fees

~ Catering costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total 2021

Net income/(expenditure)

' Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
~ Fees paid to auditor for: '

. - audit

- other services

Total

Net income/(expenditure) for the year iﬁcludes:

‘ Total
o funds - funds
2022 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000
423 423 323
8,451 8,451 8,188
1,968 1,968 ' 860
. 569 - 569 1,158
1,344 1,344 1,328
990 990 649
132 132 359
11 111 213
399. 399 496
226 226 170
627 - 627 604 -
1,649 1,649 1,411
105 105 65
137 137 126
17,131 17,131 15,950
" 15,950 ° 15,950
2022 2021
£000 £000
92 83
1,969 2,082
- 23 23
4 9
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11. Staff

a. Staff costs

‘Staff costs durihg the year were as follows:

2022 2021

: . £000 - £000

Wages and salaries ' ) : 24,832 23,922

" Social security costs _ T . . 2,398 2,271

Pension costs . ‘ _ - 71,838 7,193

_ 35,068 33,386

Agency staff costs - . ' 2,930 2,737

Staff restructuring costs . ) 224 - 393

Staff development o : : ‘ - 233 - 169
38,455 36,685 -

Staff restructuring costs qomprise:

2022 2021

: . ‘ . £000 . £000

Redundancy payments 4 . . : 154 367

' " Severance payments - - ‘ 70 .26

224 1393

b. Severance payments '

The Academy paid 3 severance payments in the year (2021 - 1), disclosed in the'fOIlowihg bands:

2022 2021

) . No. - No.

£0 - £25,000 - ' | 2 -
£25,001 - £50,000 . L | 1. - 1

c. Special staff severance 'payments

Jncluded in staff restructurlng costs are non-statutory/non -contractual severance payments totalllng £70k
(2021: £26k). This'comprised of three payments of £50k, £3k and £17k. \
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11.  Staff (continuédi '

d. Staff numbers

The average number of pensohs employed by the Academy during the year was asvfollows:

2022 2021

No. No.

Teachers : e ' ' 341 331

Admin and Support ’ 670 647

Management A _ _ ' » o 49 42
1,060 1,020

The average headcount expréssed as full-time equivalents was:

2022 - 2021

. A . " No. " No.:

Teachers ‘ o : o 31 315
Admin and support o © 363 365
Management . ) ‘ ’ 48 - 42

722 722

e. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was: :
- . o : ' , - 2022 - 2021
’ ) No. No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 . ‘ o - 21 13
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 ~ : . s 12 9
" In the band £80,001 - £90,000 ' 3 6 .

_ . Inthe band £90,001 - £100,000 - S 3 2
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 » IR ' ‘ 3 3
In the band £140,000 - £150,000 : : - 1

In the band £150,000 - £160,000 - - ‘ ) 1 -

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer
pension contributions and employer naticnal insurance contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the Academy was £747k (2021 - £798k). .
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12. Central services

‘The Academy has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Legal Advice :

Consultant support for structures/sponsorshlp appllcatlon

Consultancy support for due diligence process for further converters or sponsorshups
Statutory accounting, Finance Momtonng/Support and audit costs: :
CEO Costs

Company Secretary costs -

H&S systems management costs .

Insurances apart from minibus and supply cover insurance

Marketing and Publicity

Training and Development for Dlrectors

Cost of trust related coaching and training

Central Office  Infrastructure

Cost of Apprentice Levy

HR and Payroll costs

Governing Body Clerking services

e @ 0 0 0 0 0 & & & 0 & 0 o o
(i

~The Académy charges for these services on the'following basis:
7.0% (2021: 7.0%) of pupil funded income.
The actual amounts charged ddfing the year were as follows:

2022

£000 £000
Temple Sutton Primary School - . ' 258 266
New North Academy ) : 135 147
Hartley Primary School ' : : 307 - 338
Upton Cross Primary Co 356" 372
John'F Kennedy School : 443 422 .
Sheringham Primary School - . . 288 291
Blenheim Primary School g 217 - 207
Drew Primary School . . : : : . 213 213
Greenways Primary School ' ) . 293 288
Edwards Hall Primary ‘ o . 87 -

2021

Total - - : 2,597
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13.

14.

Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under thelr contracts of employment
The value of Trustees remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2022 2021

) S ‘ . £000 £000

G Wilkie, Accounting Officer " Remuneration 150 - 155 145- 150
' ' Pension contributions_paid 20-25 35-40

During the year ended 31 August 2022, no Trustee expenses have beeh ianrred (2021 - £NIL).

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that -arise. This scheme protects
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustee and

. officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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15. Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2021
~ Additions
Transfer from local authority on conversion

At 31 August 2022

Depreciation
At 1 September 2021
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2022

Net book value

At 31 August 2022

At 31 August 2021

- Included in land énd buildings is land valued at £38,638k (2021: £38,638k)

16. Debtors

Fs

Due within one year -
Trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income .

Long-term Furniture
leasehold and Computer -
property equipment -equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
95,030 2,344 820 98,194
- 1,030 149 . 1,179
- 4,936 30 44 5,010
99,966 . - 3,404 1,013 ., 104,383
5,559 1,341 727 7,627
. 1,187 679 103 1,969 .
6,746 2,020 830 9,596
93,220 1,384 183 94,787
89,471 1,003 93 90,567 .
2022 2021
- £000. £000
168 836
172 326
861 936
1,201 2,008
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17.  Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2022 2021
) £000 £000
Trade creditors ' : o 1,251 ' 996
Other taxation and social security | ' i ' ‘ : 599 : 571.
Other creditors ! 4 - 582 577
Accruals and deferred income - . . 1,137 1,550
3,569 3,694
2022 - 2021
' ) £000 £000
Deferred income at 1 September 2021 ' ' ' 1,031 1,134
Resources deferred during the year ‘ 472 1,031
Amounts released from previous periods . - {1,031) (1,134)
472 1,031

At the balance-sheet date the trust was holding funds for UIFSM, High Needs and Early Years.
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18. Statement of funds‘

‘Balance at 1 - - Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure .infout  (Losses) 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 ©.£000 £000
Unrestricted B
funds.
. General Funds 2,923 2,481 (797) . - (1,923) - 2,684
Transfer from local
~ authority on '
conversation ) - 736 - (736) - -
2,923 3,217 - (797) (2,659) - 2,684
Restricted funds
General Annual . : ' o
Grant (GAG) - 28,841 (30,100) 1,259 - -
Pupil Premium - 2,329 (2,329) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA :
grants - 1,952 (1,952) - - -
Other government’ :
grants ’ - 8,216 (8,216) - - -
Other income R 41 (41) . . .
Transfer from local -
authority on ‘ i
conversion o- (862) - 862 - -
~ Pension reserve . (25,697) - (3,232) (862) 24,345 (5,446)
(25,697) 40,517 (45,870) 1,259 24,345 (5,446)
. Restricted fixed
asset funds
Restricted fixed :
asset fund 90,567 - (1,969) 6,189 - 94,787
ESFA/DSE capital o :
grants 567 966 (261) 221 - 1,493
Transfer from ' '
local authority on )
~<:onversion - 5,010 - (5,010) - -
91,134 5,976 . (2,230) 1,400 - 96,280 :
Total Restricted ,
funds : 65,437 46,493 2,659 24,345 90,834

(48,100)

Page 51



Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)’

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

18.

Statement of funds (conttnued)

‘Balance at 1 . o - ' . Balance at

September ' ) Transfers Gains/ 31 August

- 2021 ~ Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2022

£000 ~ £000 £000 - £000 £000 -~ £000

Total funds . 68,360 49,710 (48,897 = - 24,345 = - 93,518

“The specific purposes for which th'e funds areto be applied are as follows

Unrestricted funds are applied to the general work of the Academy Trust to support activities inside and
outside the curriculum.

GAG represents funds to be used to cover the normal running costs of the Academy Trust.

Pupil premium funding is prowded in order to be used to support dlsadvantaged puplls and’ to assnst them
in decreasing the attainment gap between those pupils and their peers.

UIFSM supports schools in dehvenng the legal requirement to offer free school meals ‘to all receptton year

-1 and year 2 pupils.

The catch-up premium is a one-off grant for the 2020/21 academic year to support children' and young
people to catch up lost time after school closure, with atlocatlons calculated ona per pupll basis, using
census data in line with the general annual grant (GAG).

Teachers' pay and pension grants are to provide support to schools in respect of the teachers payA
awards

Other DfE/ESFA grants represents grants provided for specific purposes, such as rates relief and PE and
sports premium is funding to make additional and sustainable improvements to the quality of the PE
physical activity and sport schools provide. -

Other government grants represent those grants prot/ided for specific purposes to provide additional
support to the pupils where required.

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund represents the net book value of tangible fixed assets. Fransfers within
this section were made to ensure the analysis correctly reflected tangible fixed assets and capital grants
available to spend. . ) .

The DfE/ESFA capital grants fund is to prowde the Academy Trust with its own capital money to address

_ improvements to buildings and other facilities.

' Under the funding agreement with. the Secretary of State the Academy was not subject to a limit on the

amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2022.
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the-preceding year is as follows: '

Balance at . .- Balanceat
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income " Expenditure infout (Losses) 2021
£000 _ £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 2,627 2,549 711). (1,542) - 2,923
Restricted
general funds
General Annual . ' a
Grant (GAG) . - 26,725 (28,080) . 1,355 - -
Pupil Premium - .. 2063 (2,063) - - -
UIFSM ' - 764 (764) - - -
Teachers pay
and pension ' A
grant - 1,160 (1,160) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA ' )
grants I - 279 (279) - - -
Other '
government .
~grants ) - 8,825 (8,825) - - -
COVID-19 Catch . 7
up . - 428 (428) - - -
Other income i - 70 (70) - - -
Pension reserve (20,358) - (2,491) - (2,848) (25,697)
*(20,358) 40,314 (44,160) - 1,355 (2,848). (25,697)
Restricted fixed
~ asset funds
Restricted fixed ' o .
asset fund 92,077 - (2,023) ' 513 - 90,567
ESFA/DfE o -
- capital grants - - 1,123 (230) (326) - 567
Transfer from ’
* local authority
on conversion Co- . 65 (65) - - -
92,077 . 1,188 (2,318) 187 - 91,134
TotaI'Restricted ) .
funds 71,718 41,502 (46,478) 1,542 (2,848) 65,437
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18.  Statement of funds (continued) N
Balance at Balance at
1 September . . Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2021 -
£000 ~ E£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
. Total funds .. - B 74,346 44,051 (47,189) - (2,848) 68,360
Total funds analysis by academy
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows:
2022 2021
£000 £000
Temple Sutton Primary School 1 1
New North Academy -1 1
_Hartley Primary School 1 1
Upton Cross Primary 1 1
John F Kennedy School 1 1
Sheringham Primary School 1 1
Blenheim Primary School 1 1
Drew Primary School 1 1
Greenways Primary School 1 1
Central Services 2,675 2,914
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 2,684 2,923
Restricted fixed asset fund - 96,280 91,134
Pension reserve (5,446) (25,697)
Total 93,518
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during thé year was as follows:

Teaching
and )
. educational Other Other costs S
support . support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs - supplies depreciation 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 '£000 £000
Temple Sutton o _ - ‘
Primary School 3,353 482 103 421 4,359 4,534
New North ' » ' 3
Academy 1,651 348 47 - 394 - 2,440 2,709
Hartley Primary . : ! ; )
School - 3,569 318 107 800 4,784 . ~ 5,050
Upton Cross : . o
Primary - 3,782 417 165 833 5,197 5,420
~John F Kennedy . .o o )
School 4,060 1,381 48 893 6,382 6,040
Sheringham ' ' .
Primary School 3,223 348 . 90 718 "~ 4,379 - 4,561
Blenheim . '
_ Primary Schoolr 2,646 317 - " 45 621 3,629 3,447
. Drew Primary S ‘ . L
School 2,284 278 149 460 3,17 3,162
Greenways ' ' . :
" Primary School 3,523 683 182 573 - 4,961 4,615
Edwards Hall ) ’ :
Primary ) 968 149 49 22 1,387 -
Learnin‘§ in , ’ . ' B
_Harmony 568 4,025 3 1,644 6,240 5,629
Academy : 29,617 8,746 988 7,578 46,929 - 45,167
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19. An'alysis of net aésets between funds
Analysis of net assets between funds - current year
Unrestricted

funds
2022

£000

Tangible fixed asset$ » . -
Current assets. ' ‘ 2,684
Creditors due within one year ) -
Provisions for liabilities and charges . -

Total
funds
2022
£000

94,787
7,746
(3,569)
(5,446)

Total ) 2,684

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior.yeai'

-

93,518

Total
funds
2021
-£000

90,567
7,184
(3,694)
(25,697)

Unrest,ricied
funds
2021
£000

Tangible fixed assets o -
Current assets 2,923
Creditors due within one year ' -
~ Provisions for liabilities. and charges o -
2,923

Total

© 68,360
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" 20. Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2022 2021

£000 £000
Net income/(expenditure) for the year (as per Statement of financial :
activities) S . . 813 (3,138)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation - - : 1,969 2,023
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income ‘ B " (966) (1,123)
* Interest receivable o ‘ m )
Transfer from local authority on conversion (4,884) -
Defined benefit pensnon scheme cost less contributions payable _ 2,808 2,168
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost N v s 423 323
Decrease in debtors _ - - . o 878 "448
Decrease in creditors : . . (105) (389)
Net cash provided by operating activities = - ' 935 - 311
21. Cash flows from investing activities
2022 2021
. . : ) £000 £000
Dividends, interest and rents from investments ' ‘ ' " 1 o1
Purchase of tangible fixed assets . ' (1,179) (513)
Capital grants from DfE Group . ) : 966 ) 1,123
Cash transferred from local authority on conversion : . . 736 L -
Net cash provided by investing activities . o _ . 524 . 611
22, Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2022 2021
: o . . £000 " £000
Cash in hand and at bank o - 16,545 5,086
Total cash and cash equivalents o : 6,545 5,086
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23.

24. .

Analysis of changes in net debt

At1 :
September ‘ At 31
2021 Cash flows August 2022
£000 £000 ~ £000
Cash at bank and in hand ) : 5,086 1,459 6,545
5,086 1,459 6,545

Conversion to an academy trust

On 01 December 2021 Edwards Hall Primary converted to academy trust status under the Academies -
Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Learning in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust from Essex County Council for £NIL consideration.

’

- The transfer has been accounted for aé a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and

liabilities -transferred were valued at their fair-value and recognised in the Balance sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of
financial activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authonty on
conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition |n the Statement of financial activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds " funds funds
£000 £000 £000 - £000
Tangible fixed assets : :
Land and buildings . - - : 4,936 - 4,936
Other tangible fixed assets - - 74 74
Current assets :
Cash - represenung budget surplus on .
LA funds : 736 - - - 736
LGPS Pension ' - (862) - ' (862)
Net assets/(liabilities) - 736 (862) 5,010 4,884
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25.

Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension- Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Newham, Essex County Council
and Islington Council. All are multi-employer defined beneﬁtéchem_es. .

As described in note 24, the LGPS obligation on conversion to an academy trust relates to the employees
of the academy trust, who were the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained
school and new employees who were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year/period. The
obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at

both the predecessor school and the academy trust at the balance sheet date.

‘ The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019. . )

Contributions amounting to £577k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021 - £572k) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by

the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations' 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers |n
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment. '

‘The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member-and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirément and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided-by Parliament.

" ‘Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions- 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at -

" 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.

The key elements of the valuatfon and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of penSIonable pay (mcludlng a 0.08% administration

levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefi its) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million : : '

e - the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current

SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
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25,

' Pension commitments (continued) : - -

The employer's pension costs baid to TPS in the year amounted to £3,216k (2021 - £3,249k).‘

. A copy of ‘the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website

(https:/iwww.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/201 9/04[_teachers-lpensions-valuation_-report.aspx).

Urlder the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-empioyer perlsion scheme. The

Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

.

Local Government Pension Scheme -

" The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme with the assets held in separate trustee-

administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £2,234k (2021 -

£2,330k), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,733k (2021 - £1,844k) and*employees'

contributions totalled £ 461k (2021 - £486k). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20.5 to
25% per cent for employers and 5.5 to 12.5% per cent for employees. ) :

As described in note 24 the LGPS oblrgatlon relates to the employees of the Academy, who were the-
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who

-transferred on conversion represents their cumulative serwce at both the predecessor school and the

Academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assum_ptibns

2022 - . 2021

, : ) % %

Rate of increase in salaries ' . 3.99 3.9
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation . 280 2.8
Discount rate for scheme liabilities _ ) . ' 4.26 1.7

Inflation assumption (CPI) ‘ ' - 291 2.8

The current mortallty assumptions include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortalrty rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2022 2021

. Years Years -
_ Retiring today »
Males - o S 214 217
- Females S 239 -24.0°
Retiring in 20 years i ' ‘
. Males ‘ _ . . 227 -23.2
Females : ’ o - 25.4 256
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25. Pension commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysi‘s

Discount rate +0.1% -

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality aséu_mption -1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1% )
CPlI rate -0.1%

Salary rate +0.1%

Salary rate -0.1%_

_ Share of scheme assets.

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Other bonds

Cash'-

Property
.Alternative assets
Other-assets

Other managed funds

_Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £384,000 (2'021. - £2,483,0QO).

The amounts recognised in thé.S.tatement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service'cost -

Interest income '

vln'terest cost _
"~ Administrative expenses

Total amount recognised in the Statement of firiancia_l activities

Page 61

2022 2021
~ £000 £000 .
(670) (1,158)
" 694 1,191
735 1,762
(821) (1,692)
661 1,095
(643)  (1,066)
42 91
(42) (91)
. At 31 At 31 August
August 2022 : 2021
£000 . £000
11,667 10,967
' 547 1,448
961 692
2,687 1,569
2,664 . 2170
1,074 . 835
994 -
20,594 17,681
2022 " 2021
£000 £000
4,568 4,000
(319) (237)
742 560
14 12
5,005 -4,335
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25,

26.

" Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the presént value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows: -

2022 2021 -
, £000 £000 .
‘At 1 September : ' g : 43,378 33,613
Conversion of academy trusts , : ' - 1,569 .
Current service cost - : ' T 4,538 4,000 -
Interest cost : 742 560
Employee contributions C : 461 . 486
Actuarial (gains)/losses . ' ' (24,280) 5,094
Benefits paid . . . ~ (398) (375)
Past service costs , o B 30 -
At31August ‘ : o 2 26,040 43378
Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2022 2021
‘ £000 £000
At1September - , 17,681 - 13,255
Conversion of academy trusts . _ . . - 707 -
Interest income . L o 319 237
Actuarial gains - : . . 65 2,246
" Employer contributions - ' ‘ - 1,773 1,844
Employee contributions o 461 486
Benefits paid - ' : S ‘ S (398) (375)
Administration experises . , : (14) C(12)
At 31 August ‘ S L . 20504 17,681

- Operating lease commitments

Aft 31 August 2022 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease bayments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2021

2022
£000 - £000
Not later than 1 year : - 66 78
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years o o 86 . 71
152 149
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27.

28.

C. 29,

Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in-the
event of it being wound up while he/she is-a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as-may be required, not exceeding £N|L for the debts and Ilabllmes contracted

) before he/she ceases to be a member. . . . .

vRelated party transactions

No related party transactions took place .in the perlod of account, other than certain trustees
remuneration and expenses already dlsclosed in note 13. :

Agency arrangements .

"The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting

period ending 31 August 2022 the academy trust received £23k (2021: £4.8k) and d|sbursed £23k (2021:
£1.3k) from the fund
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